Eastleigh House
Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

15 June 2018

NOTICE OF MEETING
ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
will meet on
Monday, 25 June 2018
beginning at
6:15 pm
in
room 16/17 Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN
TO:

Councillor Daniel Clarke (Chair),
Councillor David Airey
Councillor Nicholas Couldrey
Councillor Tim Groves
Councillor Sara Tyson-Payne

Staff Contacts:

Councillor Keith House (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Ian Corben
Councillor Judith Grajewski
Councillor Gin Tidridge

Cheryll Kemsley, Democratic Services Officer Tel: 023 8068 8112;
Email: cheryll.kemsley@eastleigh.gov.uk

GAETANA WISEMAN
Performance and Governance Manager
_____________________________________________________________________

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the
Council's website https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk.
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and
other languages, upon request.
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the
item is discussed. To register please contact the Democratic
Services Officer above
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming,
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public, and
that Councillors will be using tablet devices to access committee
papers.

AGENDA
1.

Public Participation

2.

Minutes

(Pages 1 - 2)

To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 5 February 2018.
3.

Apologies

4.

Declarations of Interest
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the
agenda. Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.

5.

Councillors' Allowances Report

6.

Community Governance Review

(Pages 3 - 20)
(Pages 21 - 36)

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Monday, 19 November 2018 at 6:15 pm
in the Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street,
Eastleigh, SO50 9YN
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s
happening in the Borough. Simply select your topics and we will send you email
updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling,
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews

Agenda Item 2
1
ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 20 February 2018 (7:00 pm – 7:40 pm)
PRESENT:
Councillor Winstanley (Chair);
Grajewski, House and Pretty

Councillors

Clarke,

Corben,

Airey,

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bain, Irish and M
Sollitt
________________________________________
RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)
10.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There was no public participation on this occasion.

11.

MINUTES
RESOLVED That the Minutes of the meeting held on 19 November 2017 be
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

12.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on
the agenda.

13.

COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW OF PARISH COUNCIL
ARRANGEMENTS WITHIN THE BOROUGH OF EASTLEIGH
Consideration was given to the report of the Senior Specialist (Elections
and Democratic Services) (Agenda Item 4) which considered the response
to the first stage of the public consultation carried out as part of the
Community Governance Review.
Representations were made by the Chair of Hound Parish Council
regarding the proposed change by Bursledon Parish Council. He also
noted the view of individuals that Hound Precept was the highest in the
area and felt that the proposal for the boundary change would not help
with that.

1

2
RESOLVED:
That the Committee –
(1)

Supported no change within those parish areas that did not
respond to the consultation and also to Chandler’s Ford Parish,
subject to Recommendation 5 below regarding West End Parish;

(2)

Supported the proposed parish boundary changes from
Bursledon Parish Council with Hedge End Town Council that are
supported by Hedge End Town Council;

(3)

Noted the potential for agreement on proposals for parish
boundary changes between Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Parishes
and between Fair Oak & Horton Heath and West End Parish
Councils;

(4)

Supported the proposals for internal ward changes from
Bishopstoke Parish Council, Hound Parish Council and Hedge
End Town Council;

(5)

Supported the move of polling district WN4 from Chartwell Ward
to Allington Ward of West End Parish Council;

(6)

Recommended that the above proposals in (1) to (5) are
consulted on as the Borough Council’s proposals subject to
confirmation on agreement being reached on the changes in (3);

(7)

Noted the proposed boundary change from Bursledon Parish
Council with Hound Parish Council; and

(8)

Recommended that all residents in this area of potential change
are individually consulted with the Borough Council having no
preferred outcome at this stage.

(NOTE: Councillor Grajewski abstained to vote on the recommendations)

2

Agenda Item 5
ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
Monday, 25 June 2018
COUNCILLORS' ALLOWANCES REPORT
Report of the
Performance and Governance Manager

Recommendations:
It is recommended that Administration Committee:
(1)

considers the purpose of the Independent Review of Councillor allowances

(2)

considers the findings of the Independent Remuneration Panel and makes
recommendations to Council

Purpose
The purpose of this report is to outline the findings of the Independent Remuneration
Panel who have conducted a full review of councillors’ allowances for Eastleigh Borough
Council and to make recommendations as to the level of the Basic Allowance and of
Special Responsibility Allowances for the year 2018/2019 and beyond for a maximum four
year period. The panel has also considered recommendations in respect of the
Dependants’ Carers’ Allowance and the scheme for travel and subsistence as outlined in
the attached report.
Statutory Powers
Local Government Act 2000 and the Local Authorities (Members Allowances) (England)
Regulations 2003

Strategic Implications
1

This report does not have a direct impact on the achievement of Corporate
Plan objectives. However, the independent review of Councillor’s allowances
supports the Council’s obligations to provide effective and transparent
governance.

Introduction
2.

The Local Government Act 2000 and the Local Authorities (Members
Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 require local authorities to review

3

their Councillors’ Allowances Scheme and to appoint Independent
Remuneration Panels to consider and make recommendations on
new/revised schemes. The Regulations state that the Panel must make
recommendations in respect of the following issues:

3.



Basic Allowance – each local authority must make provision for a basic,
flat rate allowance payable to all Councillors;



Special Responsibility Allowance (SRA) – each local authority may
make provision for the payment of Special Responsibility Allowances to
those Councillors who have significant responsibilities. The Panel has
to recommend the responsibilities that should be paid and the levels of
each allowance;



Co-optees’ allowance – each local authority may make provision for the
payment of an allowance to co-optees for attending meetings,
conferences and seminars;



Childcare and Dependants’ Carers’ Allowance – local authorities may
make provision for the payment of an allowance to those Councillors
who incur expenditure for the care of children or dependent relatives
whilst undertaking particular duties;



Indexation – each local authority may determine that allowances should
be increased in accordance with a specified index and can identify the
index and set the number of years (not exceeding four) for which it
should apply;



Backdating – each local authority may determine that, where
amendments are made to an allowances scheme, the allowances as
amended may be backdated;



Travel and subsistence – each local authority may determine the levels
of travel and subsistence allowances and the duties to which they
should apply.



The Government removed councillors from the Local Government
Pension Scheme. This has resulted in a saving to the Council of £880
in 2018/19

The attached report from the Independent Remuneration Panel outlines their
findings and the thinking behind their recommendations (appendix A). An
overview of current costs and proposed costs is attached in appendix B.

The Role of the Council
4.

4

Whilst it is the responsibility of the Panel to make recommendations on a
councillor’s allowances scheme, it is ultimately for Council to make the final
decision on the scheme and to accept or reject recommendations of the
Independent Remuneration Panel.

Eastleigh Borough Council

5.

To ensure openness and transparency, the Council is required to make
generally available, the details of its Councillors’ Allowances Scheme. As with
the 2010 scheme, the Council’s decisions will be drawn together in a userfriendly format for both Councillors and members of the public.

Financial Implications
6.

It is anticipated that the recommendations made by the Independent
Remuneration Panel would result in a slight decrease in the overall cost of the
Councillors’ Allowance Scheme for 2018/19 (see appendix A and B).

Risk Assessment
7.

There are no risks arising from this report.

Equality and Diversity Implications
8.

The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report as the decision
does not relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity,
or fostering good relations between different people. An Equality Impact
Assessment has not been carried out.

Conclusion
9.

Members of Administration Committee are asked to review and make
recommendations to Council on the full review of councillors’ allowances for
Eastleigh Borough Council carried out by the Independent Remuneration
Panel and to make recommendations as to the level of the Basic Allowance
and of Special Responsibility Allowances for the year 2018/2019 and beyond
for a maximum four year period. Committee are also asked to consider
recommendations in respect of the Dependants’ Carers’ Allowance and the
scheme for travel and subsistence as outlined in the report.
Gaetana Wiseman
Performance and Governance Manager

Date:
Contact Officer:
Tel No:
e-mail:
Appendices Attached:

11 June 2018
Gaetana Wiseman
023 8068 8174
gaetana.wiseman@eastleigh.gov.uk
2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this report or an
important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in the preparation
of this report. This list does not include any published works or documents which would
disclose exempt or confidential information.
Background papers: None

Eastleigh Borough Council

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A

A Review of Members’ Allowances for
Eastleigh Borough Council
Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel
21st & 22nd November 2017

THE GUILDHALL, HIGH STREET
WINCHESTER
HAMPSHIRE,
SO23 9GH

1

7

1.

Introduction

The Independent Remuneration Panel was convened to undertake a full review of
Members’ Allowances. The review was undertaken and the Panel convened in
accordance with The Local Authorities (Members Allowances) (England) Regulations (SI
1021) (2003 Regulations).
The Panel met on 21st and 22nd November 2017 and membership of the Panel was:Mark Palmer, Development Director, South East Employers (Panel Chair)
Norman Wilkins, Local Government Officer (Retired) and local resident
Ann Fielder, Registration Services Officer (Retired) and local resident.
A questionnaire was sent out to all Members prior to the review and we interviewed 12
Members and 1 Officer. Sixteen of the 44 Members of the Council completed the
questionnaire; a comprehensive analysis of the questionnaire is attached as Appendix 1.
The Panel would like to thank the Members who completed the questionnaire as well as
the Members and the Officer we interviewed during the process. We have taken account
of the views expressed to us by those Members and Officer; and would like to thank them
for their assistance in this review.
Additionally the Panel was assisted and supported throughout by Gaetana Wiseman,
(Performance and Governance Manager) and Kath Richards (Senior Specialist, Elections
and Democratic).
Other information at our disposal included previous Reports of the Independent
Remuneration Panel, the current Scheme of Members’ Allowances and committee
reports.
We also had the benefit of the Members’ Allowance Survey for District and Borough
Councils in the South East published by South East Employers in October 2017, the
Survey has been used to support benchmarking and for this purpose we have used the
Hampshire district and borough Councils as the benchmark group
Comprehensive details of the allowances in these Councils are attached as Appendix 2.
2.

Terms of Reference

Our terms of reference were to undertake a full review of Members’ Allowances for
Eastleigh Borough Council and to make recommendations as to the level of the Basic
Allowance and of Special Responsibility Allowances for the year 2018/2019 and beyond
for a maximum 4 year period. The review also included making recommendations in
respect of the Dependants’ Carers’ Allowance and the scheme for travel and subsistence.
The Panel was established in accordance with section 99 of the Local Government Act
2000.

8

2

3.

The Deliberations of the Panel

The Panel had access to the previous reports of the Independent Remuneration Panel; a
full review last took place in October 2010. The Panel has given due consideration to this
review as part of its deliberations when formulating its recommendations.
The Panel is also mindful of the impact of the 2016 Boundary Review undertaken by the
Local Government Boundary Commission that will lead to a reduction in the number of
Members from 44 to 39 from May 2018.
During the interviews and within the Questionnaire the issue was raised of the potential of
an increasing workload as a consequence of a reduction in the number of Members and
Wards with a higher number of residents.
The Panel has taken in to consideration these issues and concerns when making its
recommendations.
A key role of the Panel is to recommend a scheme of allowances which recognises both
Members’ responsibilities and workloads. However, the Panel was mindful of the
Council’s continued financial constraints when making its recommendations.
To develop a structured approach in determining allowances the Panel has used
transparent formula and methodology for calculating the Basic Allowance and the Special
Responsibility Allowances.
4.

Basic Allowance

The current Basic Allowance for Eastleigh Borough Council was agreed during the review
undertaken in 2010. Following the application of the recommended indexation the level of
Basic Allowance is now £6,240.
In determining the Basic Allowance the Panel considered Member responses during the
interviews and the Questionnaire that identified that almost 70% of Members were of the
view that the present level of Basic Allowance was appropriate and required no significant
increase.
The Panel also sought views from Members during the interviews in respect of whether
they felt that the current level of the Basic Allowance was a barrier to candidates from all
sections of the community standing to be councillors, most Members were of the view that
the level of the Basic Allowance was not a significant barrier to standing for Council and
other factors such as work/life balance had a greater impact on recruiting and retaining
Councillors.

3

9

The Panel was of the view that a structured formula for calculating the Basic Allowance
was required and will provide a foundation to allow a future Panel to better determine the
allowance and also provide a transparent formula for how the Basic Allowance was
arrived at.
In determining a formula to calculate the Basic Allowance, the Panel chose full-time
median hourly earnings for Eastleigh Borough area as place of residence. This
information is published by the Office for National Statistics each December as part of its
National Statistics of Hours and Earnings (NOMIS) and in December 2016 this was
£14.88 per hour.
The formula was also based on average weekly hours undertaken and in respect of the
average national weekly hours for a District/Borough Councillor without any additional
special responsibilities the Local Government Association (LGA) as part of the LGA
Councillor Census stated between 10 to 15 hours was appropriate. The Panel therefore
chose 12 hours per week to support the calculation of the Basic Allowance.
Finally, the Panel also looked at the level of the Public Service Discount (PSD). The PSD
is the element of a Members activity that is given on a purely voluntary basis. The
questionnaire responses had varying views on the percentage level of PSD ranging from
5% to 50%, the average across the South East region is between 30-50%. The Panel was
of the view that a level of 30% should represent the level of recommended “Public Service
Discount”.
Based on these figures the level of Basic Allowance for Members of the Council
can be calculated as 12 hours per week x 52 weeks x £14.88 per hour - 30% Public
Service Discount which gives an annual Basic Allowance of £6,499.58 (£6,500).
Currently, Eastleigh Borough Council is ranked fifth in the level of Basic Allowance across
the eleven benchmark Hampshire district/borough councils. After this recommended
change to the Basic Allowance, Eastleigh Borough Council will be in forth position with
regards the level of Basic Allowances across the benchmark Councils.
The Panel felt that the proposed Basic Allowance was creating a structured formula and
approach to determining the Basic Allowance that could serve the Council for many years
and it led to a real term increase of just £260 (4% increase) in the level of Basic
Allowance.

10

4

Benchmark Councils- Basic Allowance (November 2017)
Council

Basic Allowances

Basingstoke & Deane BC

£6,876

Fareham BC

£6,809

Test Valley BC

£6,581

Gosport BC

£6,280

Eastleigh BC

£6,240 (proposed £6,500)

New Forest DC

£6,150

Havant BC

£5,891

Winchester CC

£5,580 (Proposed £6,023)

East Hampshire DC

£5,200

Rushmoor BC

£5,005

Hart DC

£4,561

Average

£5,989

RECOMMENDATION: The Basic Allowance for Members of Eastleigh Borough
Council for the year 2018/2019 should be £6,500 subject to any indexation.
5.

Special Responsibility Allowances (SRA’s)

The Panel have as with the Basic Allowance developed a clear formula for calculating the
SRA’s that should serve the Council well for a number of years. The Panel heard no
strong views during the interviews and there was no evidence in the questionnaire that
supported a significant change to the number and the roles that received an SRA.
However, the interviews did provide the Panel with a clear understanding of the strategic
direction and priorities of the Council that is reflected in the recommendations for the
SRA’s.
For ease of reference, set out on page 10 are the current allowances and the proposed
level of allowances the IRP recommends for 2018/19.

5

11

In determining which roles merit a SRA the Panel was cognisant of the 2006 Statutory
Guidance (May 2006, paragraphs 70 and 73) that states:
“SRAs may be paid to those members of the council who have significant additional
responsibilities over and above the generally accepted duties of a councillor. These
special responsibilities must be related to the discharge of the authority’s functions.”
When considering all the current roles at Eastleigh Borough Council that receive an SRA
the Panel was of the view that all of the roles continue to involve a” significant additional
responsibility” that will lead them to receive an SRA.
In determining the SRA’s the Panel heard evidence from Members and Officers during the
individual interviews and the findings of the questionnaire. The review in 2010 had made
no recommendations in respect of a formula for calculating the SRA’s and the Panel has
now put in place a formula for calculating each SRA.
Leader of the Council
The Panel recommend that the formula for calculating the Leader of the Council
allowance to be a multiplier of three times the Basic Allowance and that all other
SRA’s with the exception of the Vice Chairs allowance be calculated as a percentage of
the Leaders allowance. The allowance for Vice Chairs is recommended to be calculated
as a percentage of the Chairs allowance.
In arriving at an indicative SRA for the Leader, the Panel has used a methodology that is
specifically mentioned in the 2006 Statutory Guidance, namely the factor approach. This
multiplies the Basic Allowance by an accepted factor to arrive at the recommended
Leaders SRA. Benchmarking shows that the average SRA for a South East Council
Leader is around three times the Basic Allowance. The Panel therefore recommend a
factor of three times the Basic Allowance for the Leader of the Council – 3 x £6,500 =
£19,500.
RECOMMENDATION: The SRA for Leader of the Council should be based on a
factor approach, a multiplier of three times the recommended Basic Allowance,
£19,500.
Local Area Committee Chair
The Panel was informed that the role of the five Local Area Committees continued to
develop and they were regarded as a key driver in supporting and delivering the corporate
and strategic priorities of the organisation. The Panel was of the view that the allowance
for the Chairs of each of the five Local Area Committees should be reflective of this
developing role.
There are very few if any Councils across the South East with Local Area Committees that
have similar roles and levels of responsibilities therefore comparative benchmark data
was unavailable. In determining the SRA for the Chairs of the Local Area Committees the

12

6

Panel was of the view that the role was the most strategic and influential outside of
Cabinet and the Local Area Committees had key decision making responsibilities
including devolved planning decisions. The Panel was therefore of the view that the role
of Chair of the Local Area Committee should receive an SRA equivalent to 25% of the
Leaders allowance, £4,875 and that the role of Vice Chair should be 25% of the Chairs
allowance, £1,219.
.
RECOMMENDATION: The SRA for Local Area Committee Chairs be based on 25%
of the proposed Leaders Allowance, £4,875 per annum and the Vice Chair 25% of
the proposed Chairs allowance, £1,219.
The Panel has proposed no other significant changes to the SRA’s
RECOMMENDATION: The SRAs for 2018/19 to be in accordance with those listed on
page 10 of the report
6.

Dependants’ Carers’ Allowance

Currently Eastleigh Borough Council offers a Dependants’ Carers’ Allowance (DCA)
equivalent to the actual cost incurred up to £10 per hour.
The Panel was of the view that a ceiling on the reimbursement of care costs at £10.00 per
hour will lead to Members who require specialist care support to undertake Approved
Duties being out of pocket.
Specialist care provision is often considerably more expensive than £10.00 per hour and
therefore the Panel was of the view that care provision should be reimbursed for the
actual cost incurred by the Member upon production of receipts.
In the case of reimbursement for the cost of specialist care the Panel was of the view that
medical evidence that this type of care is required must also be provided and approved by
an appropriate officer of the Council.
RECOMMENDATION: The Panel recommend that specialist care provision should
be reimbursed at cost upon production of receipts and that medical evidence that
this type of care is required must also be provided and be approved by an
appropriate officer of the Council.
Basic care provision e.g. short term child care should be reimbursed at the rate of
up to £12.00 per hour upon production of receipts. This rate should also be subject
to the agreed formula for indexation of allowances
The Dependants’ Carer’ Allowance should also be better promoted and
communicated by the Council and political parties to both prospective and newly
elected Members.

7

13

7.

Travel and Subsistence

The Council currently pays mileage allowances based on the HMRC rates. No evidence
was received to indicate that the current terms and conditions, including approved duties,
and rates at which these allowances are claimable needed revisiting.
RECOMMENDATION: The Council continue the current travel and subsistence
allowances, including the approved duties and the terms and conditions for which
they are claimable be maintained.
8. Index Linking
The index linking of the allowances is currently based on the staff salary increases
relating to staff employed as part of the NJC for Local Government Staff Services
The Panel was of the view that this approach to indexation should continue and therefore
future index linking of the Basic Allowance and SRA’s from April 2018 should be at the
rate of increase in staff salaries.
RECOMMENDATION: Any index linkage agreed should be in line with staff salary
increases for a maximum of four years from 2018/2019 to 2022/ 2023. The Panel
recommends that Members ensure the indexation of allowances based on the
percentage of staff salary increases takes place and is not foregone.
9. Maximum Number of SRA’s Payable
In accordance with the 2006 Statutory Guidance (paragraph 72) it is stated good practice
that no more than 50% of Eastleigh Borough Council Members should receive an SRA at
any one time.
RECOMMENDATION: The Panel recommends that no more than 50% of the Council
Members (19 Members in total from May 2018) should receive an SRA at any one
time.
10. Implementation of Recommendations
As permitted by the 2003 Members’ Allowances Regulations (paragraph 10.6) it is
recommended that the new Members’ Allowances as set out in this report be
implemented by April 2018
Mark Palmer
Chairman of the Independent Remuneration Panel,
November 2017

14

8

Basic Allowance
Leader
Deputy Leader of the
Council
Cabinet Member
Local Area
Committee Chair
Local Area
Committee Vice
Chair
Scrutiny Panel Chair
Scrutiny Panel Vice
Chair
Audit and Resources
Chair
Audit and Resources
Vice Chair
Minority Group
Leaders
Administration
Committee Chair

Total Cost (£)



CURRENT
ALLOWANCES
£
6,240 (44)
19,959 (1)

2018/2019
RECOMMENDATIONS
£
6,500 (39)
19,500 (1)

9,230 (1)

9,750 (1)

7,910 (6)

8,775 (6)

3,297 (5)

4,875 (5)

823 (5)

1,219 (5)

2,636 (1)

2,925 (1)

660 (1)

731 (1)

2,636 (1)

2,925 (1)

660 (1)

731 (1)

5,274 (2)*
1,650 (1)

5,850 (2)*
1,950 (1)

390,599

RATIONALE &
METHODOLOGY

Three times the
Basic Allowance
50% of the
Leaders
Allowance
45% of the
Leaders
Allowance
25% of the
Leaders
Allowance
25% of the Area
Committee Chair
Allowance
15% of the
Leaders
Allowance
25% of the
Scrutiny Panel
Chair Allowance
15% of the
Leaders
Allowance
25% of the Audit
and Resources
Chair Allowance
30% of the
Leaders
Allowance
10% of the
Leaders
Allowance

386,832

Current position based on all 44 Members receiving the Basic Allowance and all
current SRAs been paid.
Recommendations based on all 39 Members receiving the Basic Allowance and all
Current SRA’s been paid
*Please note there were two minority group leaders in place from July 2017

9

15

The Panel’s recommendations will lead to the annual cost of all allowances been reduced
by £3,767, subject to all Members receiving the Basic Allowance and all SRA’s been paid.
The reduction in Members as part of the Boundary Commission Review, 44 to 39
Members will result in an initial saving of £31,200.The recommended changes to the
Basic Allowance and SRA’s will cost an additional £28,733 leading to a net reduction of
£3,767.

16

10

MEMBERS AND OFFICERS OF EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERVIEWED BY
THE INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 21st & 22nd NOVEMBER2017
Councillor Anne Winstanley

Deputy Leader of the Council

Nick Tustian

Chief Executive

Councillor Derek Pretty

Member Leading on Economy

Councillor Pamela Holden Brown

Chair of the Local Area Committee

Councillor David Airey

Member Leading on the Transport

Councillor Wayne Irish

Local Area Committee Chair

Councillor Malcolm Cross
Councillor Margaret Allingham

Vice Chair of Policy and Performance
Scrutiny Panel
Ward Member – Hedge End St Johns

Councillor Michael Hughes

Ward Member- Hiltingbury West

Councillor Maureen Sollitt

Mayor

Councillor Tina Campbell

Ward Member- Eastleigh Central

Councillor Keith House

Leader of the Council

Councillor Judith Grajewski

Leaders of the two opposition parties

11

17

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix B

Eastleigh Borough Council - Members Allowances Current and Projected Costs
Current
Basic Allowance

Total Cost

6240

Proposed

Total Cost

6500

Leader of the Council

19,959

19,959

Basic Allow x 3

19500

19,500

Deputy Leader of the
Council

9,230

9,230

50% of Leader

9750

9,750

Cabinet Member

7,910

X6

47,460

45% of Leader

8775

X6

52,650

Area Committee Chairs

3,297

X5

16,485

25% of Leader

4875

X5

24,375

823

X5

4115

25% of Chair

1219

X5

6,095

2,636

15% of Leader

2925

2,925

731

731

Area Committee Vice
Chair
Scrutiny Panel Chair
Scrutiny Panel Vice Chair

2,636
660

Minority Group Leaders

5,274

Audit & Resources Chair

2,636

Audit & Resources Vice
Chair

660

Admin Committee Chair

1,650

TOTAL
44 Cllrs @ 6240

TOTAL

660
X2

25%of Chair

10,548

30% of Leader

5850

2,636

15% of Leader

2925

2,925

731

731

1950

1,950

660
1,650

25% of Chair
10% of Leader

116,039
274,560

274,560
390,599

X2

11,700

133,332
39 Cllrs @ 6500

253,500
386,832

19

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
Monday 25 June 2018
COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW
Report of the Performance and Governance Manager

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Administration Committee approve changes (1), (3), (4),
(5) and (6) below and that these recommended changes are reported to Council for
approval. That recommendation (2) is actioned immediately after this meeting of the
Administration Committee; and that Recommendation (7) is noted.
(1)

Parish boundary change between Bursledon and Hedge End, new boundary
following M27.

(2)

Evidence is inconclusive and therefore residents of Old Netley should be
given the final decision by means of a ballot to each household.

(3)

Parish boundary change between Hound and Hamble-le-Rice, new boundary
along River Hamble

(4)

Parish boundary change between West End and Fair Oak and Horton Heath,
the new parish boundary to be along the railway / stream.

(5)

Change parish wards of Bishopstoke parish, in line with proposal.

(6)

Change parish wards of Hedge End parish, in line with proposal and take
account of additional area, as set out in recommendation (1)

(7)

Note proposed polling district changes in West End parish as part of a wider
polling district review in the Borough in Autumn 2018.

Purpose
This report considers the responses to the second stage of the public consultation carried
out as part of the Community Governance Review having regard to the law and the
guidance issued by the Department for Communities and Local Government and the Local
Government Boundary Commission.
Statutory Powers
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007

21

Strategic Implications
1.

The content of this report does not directly contribute to the achievement of
Corporate Plan objectives. However, given population and housing growth, it is
important time is taken to review the Council’s community governance
arrangements and ensure they reflect the identities and interests of the
community, and that they are also effective and convenient.

Introduction and Background
2. Under the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, local
authorities have the power to stimulate debate in respect of parish boundaries.
Community Governance Reviews can take place for the whole, or part of, the
Borough to consider one or more of the following:








Creating, merging, altering or abolishing parishes;
The naming of parishes and the style of new parishes;
The electoral arrangements for parishes (the ordinary year of election;
council size, the number of councillors to be elected to the Council, and
parish warding), and
Grouping parishes under a common parish council or de-grouping
parishes.

The Council is required to ensure that community governance within the area
under review will be:







Reflective of the identities and interests of the community in that area; and
Is effective and convenient.
In doing so the community governance review is required to take into
account:
The impact of community governance arrangements on community
cohesion; and
The size, population and boundaries of a local community or parish.

3. At its meeting on 20 November 2017, the Administration Committee agreed to
carry out a Community Governance Review within the Borough.
4. The first consultation period took place from 6 December 2017 to 30 January
30 with a stakeholder meeting held on 3 January 2018. Responses were
received from seven parish councils. Full details can be found in the report to
the meeting of this committee on 20 February 2018.

Stage two consultation
5. At its meeting on 20 February 20 2018, the Administration Committee agreed to
carry out the stage two consultation on the recommended proposals which
included four changes to parish boundaries, two changes to parish wards and
one polling district change. The consultation was on these seven proposals.

22

Eastleigh Borough Council

6. Stage two consultation took place from 4 May to 8 June 2018. Responses
could be made via an online survey or in writing. A drop in session was held on
15 May 2018 at Pilands Wood Community centre. This was aimed at those
residents of Old Netley, the largest group of residents potentially affected by
proposals set out in the consultation.
7. In addition around 600 households and businesses in areas potentially affected
by a change in parish boundary were written to and invited to respond.
8. A general notification of the consultation was also made through Eastleigh
Borough Councils ‘E-News’ which was sent to all 13,600 residents on this
database.

Consultation responses
9. In total 212 responses to the consultation were received. Just 14 responded to
all seven proposals, the majority responded to just one or two of the proposals.
This level of response does not constitute a statistically significant
sample, either when looking at the individual proposals or across the
population as a whole. All results must therefore be treated with extreme
caution as we cannot rely on them as being an accurate representation. The
table below summarises the number of responses for each question and
whether they supported or opposed the proposal.

Proposal

responses

support

oppose

Q1

boundary change between Bursledon and Hedge End

57

24

33

Q2

boundary change between Hound and Bursledon

127

19

108

Q3

boundary change between Hound and Hamble-le-Rice

144

127*

17

Q4

boundary change between West End and Fair Oak & Horton Heath

26

12

14

Q5

ward change within Bishopstoke parish

26

18

8

Q6

ward change within Hedge End parish

25

17

8

Q7

polling district change within West End parish

16

7

9

*supported either option one or two

10.

The most significant interest was in the proposed boundary changes, in
particular those between both Hound and Bursledon and Hound and Hamblele-Rice. Below is a summary for each proposal.

11.

Parish boundary change between Bursledon and Hedge End (area north
of M27 to move from Bursledon to Hedge End Parish). See Appendix 1 for
map.

12.

Letters were sent to 153 households and businesses which are located in the
area of Bursledon Parish, north of the M27. In total 57 responses were
received of which 42% supported the proposed changed and 58% opposed it.

Eastleigh Borough Council

23

24

13.

Seven comments were received in support of the proposal which stated that
the motorway provided a clear boundary and that the new development north
of Pylands Lane is closer to Hedge End.

14.

Of those opposing the proposal, 15 made comments. Respondents felt that
Hedge End was already too big and this was unnecessary bureaucracy. The
area north of the M27 had a strong identity with Bursledon parish, in particular
around Dodwell and the pond. Some felt that the new development would fit
more naturally with Hedge End but the remaining area should stay within
Bursledon parish. Concern was also raised about the rights of way, given the
active group in Bursledon, which did not exist within Hedge End.

15.

Parish boundary change between Hound and Bursledon (area of Old
Netley and two new developments on Hamble Lane to move from Hound to
Bursledon). See Appendix 2 for map.

16.

Letters were sent to 366 households and businesses in Old Netley, 127
responses were received of which 15% agreed with the proposal and 85%
opposed it.

17.

Of those in support of the proposal 13 made comments. Many stated that this
area felt more naturally part of the community of Bursledon and this is where
residents would go for local facilities, as these are much closer that those
within Hound Parish. Some already felt part of Bursledon and that the new
developments would be part of the Bursledon community. A suggestion was
made to consider reducing the area covered by Hound, Hamble-le-Rice and
Bursledon into two parishes.

18.

Of those against the proposal 18 made comments. Some felt it would not
make sense for Netley and Old Netley to be in separate parishes. Several felt
that things should not change due to many generations living in the parish of
Hound. There was concern that the proposal was to enable Bursledon parish
to gain income from households in the new developments and by reducing
Hound, it could become financially unviable. Also stated was that the proposal
ignored the natural divide of Hamble Lane.

19.

Boundary change between Hound and Hamble-le-Rice (two options, either
move boundary to Satchell Lane or to River Hamble). See Appendix 3 for
map.

20.

Letters were set to 32 household and businesses in the area. In total 145
responses were received of which 88% supported a change and 12% did not.
Of those in support the majority felt that a new boundary along the River
Hamble was most appropriate. This was a particularly high number of
responses in relation to the number of affected addresses.

21.

Of those in support of change 10 comments were received, these stated that
the change made sense, it would ensure the school was entirely within one
parish and would have little impact on residents.

Eastleigh Borough Council

22.

Of those against the proposed change two comments were received, stating
that they saw no reason for change.

23.

Boundary change between West End and Fair Oak & Horton Heath (area
north of the railway, including the new development at Crowd Hill). See
Appendix 4 for map.

24.

Letters were sent to 43 households and businesses in the area. In total 26
responses were received 46% in support of the proposal and 54% against it.

25.

Five comments were received all from those against the proposal.
Respondents felt that Fair Oak & Horton Heath already had significant new
development without including this area. They have had significant increases
to their council tax but no improved facilities, why are there no benefits being
realised from developer contributions?

26.

Ward change within Bishopstoke parish
In total 26 responses were received of which 69% supported the proposal and
31% did not. Eight comments were received four from those who support the
proposal and four against. Those against felt there was too much
bureaucracy, the number of councillors should be reduced and that the
proposals were not clear. Those in support stated that residents would be
better represented with a more even amount of councillors to residents.

27.

Ward change within Hedge End parish
In total 25 responses were received of which 68% supported the change and
32% did not. Five comments were received all from those who do not support
the proposal. They said there was too much bureaucracy, changes for political
reasons and they wanted to know if this changed the number of councillors?

28.

Polling district change within West End Parish
In total 16 responses were received, 44% in support and 56% against. Five
comments were received all from those against the proposal. Concern was
raised that this was away from the centre which is a more convenient location
for voting.

Other Evidence
29.

The outcome of the stage two consultation is just one part of the evidence that
must be considered as part of this review, particularly given the number of
responses that cannot be considered statistically significant. In addition it is
important to also consider:
a. Submission to the stage one consultation, including the rationale for
proposals.
b. Criteria for change, as set out by the Local Government Boundary
Commission for England
i. Recognise community identity and taking account of new
housing developments
ii. Facilitates effective and convenient local government
Eastleigh Borough Council

25

iii. Use firm boundaries on the ground
iv. Has regard for other administrative boundaries
A summary for each proposal is given below.

26

30.

Parish boundary change between Bursledon and Hedge End
a. A proposed change was put forward by Bursledon Parish Council and
supported by Hedge End Town Council, both agreeing that the M27
provided a permanent boundary. The new development north of
Pylands Lane is primarily an extension of Hedge End.
b. The proposal would satisfy all criteria.

31.

Parish Boundary change between Hound and Bursledon
a. The proposal was put forward by Bursledon Parish Council, but there is
no agreement from Hound Parish Council. The rationale was that the
existing community of Old Netley is an integral part of the community of
Bursledon, with residents primarily using services in Bursledon.
b. The new developments both North and South of Old Netley are closer
to facilities in Bursledon than those in Hound, as are being marketed as
‘Bursledon’. Hamble Lane is a firm boundary on the ground, but it could
equally be argued that neighbours living on opposite sides of the road
are naturally a community but currently reside in separate parishes.

32.

Parish boundary change between Hound and Hamble-le-Rice
a. The proposal was put forward by Hamble-Le-Rice parish council. The
rationale was that the current boundary dissects Hamble School
Campus, which could be more effectively served if within a single
parish. The Blackthorn Surgery also sits just outside the Hamble parish
boundary but most residents consider it to be in Hamble.
b. The proposal would satisfy all criteria.

33.

Parish boundary change between West End and Fair oak and Horton
Heath
a. Proposal put forward by Fair Oak & Horton Heath parish council, the
rationale is based on the significant new development south of Horton
Heath, which will naturally become part of that community. General
agreement from West End parish council.
b. The proposal would satisfy all criteria.

34.

Parish ward changes within Bishopstoke Parish
a. Proposal put forward by Bishopstoke parish council to improve electoral
equality within the parish (i.e. more equal ratio of councillor to electors)
b. The proposal would satisfy all criteria.

35.

Parish ward changes to Hedge End Parish
a. Proposal put forward by Hedge End town Council to achieve a more
even distribution across the parish.
b. The proposal would satisfy all criteria.

Eastleigh Borough Council

36.

Polling district changes to West End Parish
a. The proposal would satisfy criteria.

Financial Implications
37. There may be minimal one-off costs relating to the administrative changes
required to amend parish boundaries as a result of this review.

Risk Assessment
38. The Borough Council has a responsibility, under its governance arrangements,
to ensure that both it and the parish councils within its area are, (in electoral
terms), structured and organised appropriately, in order that they can serve the
public need as effectively as possible.

Equality and Diversity Implications
39. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report as the decision
does not relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity,
or fostering good relations between different people. An Equality Impact
Assessment has not been carried out.

Conclusions
40. The committee is asked to consider the evidence and recommendations in this
report and agree the way forward. Ensuring that it will provide clarity and
transparency to the areas that parish councils represent and that the electoral
arrangements of parishes (specifically ward arrangements and allocations of
councillors) are appropriate, equitable and readily understood by their
electorate.
Helen Owens
Engagement Specialist
Date:
13 June 2018
Contact Officer:
Helen Owens
Tel No:
e-mail:
helen.owens@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached:
Appendices 1-4, maps illustrating proposed parish
boundary changes.
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information: None

Eastleigh Borough Council

27

This page is intentionally left blank

Proposed move
from Bursledon to
Hedge End

29

This page is intentionally left blank

Proposed move
from Hound to
Bursledon

31

This page is intentionally left blank

Proposed
move from
Hound to
Hamble-le-Rice

33

This page is intentionally left blank

Proposed move
from West End to
Fair Oak &
Horton Heath

35

This page is intentionally left blank

